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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN] PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. Mary's Church, Fairfax Station, is a simple one story white frame building
in the early Gothic Revival tredition, It has a bastlican plan with a steeple
at the entrance end and an interior gallery. Over the entrance door is a large
Gothic arched window with a simple fracery pattemn forming twin arches within
it. On either side of the entry way are lancet windows. There are four
additional arched windows aloig each of the fwo sides of the building, three
on each side are filled with plain glass and are without tracery. The end
window on each side is filled with stained glass. The exterior of the church
has not been altered since its construction in 1853, It is sited on u small hill,
but extensive tree cover now limits the visibility from the site. Thereisa
small churchyard and cemetery on the property. ' =
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Mary's Church was built to serve the needs of the Irish immigrants recruifed to work on
construction of the Orange and Alexandria Railrosd who then settled in this area.

This was the first Roman Catholic Church built within Fairfax Couaty and has been in

continuous use as a church,

~During the Civil War, after the Second Battle of Bull Run, wounded were brought here by
train to be treated and evacuated to Alexandria und Washington. Federal troops occupied
the church and used the pews for firewood,

Clare Barton, founder of the American Red Cross, made this church her headquarters for
treatment of the wounded in August, 18562,

The Orange and Alexandria Railroad line was one of the first linss from the coast fo the
inland of Virginia and a forerunner of the Northem Virginia railway systemn. One of iis
linzs ran from Alexandria through Fairfax Court House and out o Bu'l Run. The Irish
immigronts recruited to build this line formed the members of St. Mary's parish.

Saini Mary's Church, Fairfax Station, is a small one story white frame building strongly
evocative of nineteenth and early twentieth century rural Virginia. Constructed in 1853,
the building was sited on a small hill to overlook the area and especially the railway line
about a quarter of a mile to the south. The Church and the railroad were closely connected.
The Orange ond Alexandria Railroad was one of the first railway systems of northern
Virginia, this spur of it connecting Alexandria with Bull Run. Recruited fo werk on the
ratlway, Irish immigrants became the first sizedble group of Roman Catholics to cettle in

this part of Virginia. It was this gro.sp which formed the nucleus of the new parish and
constructed the simple church.

" Not Jong after the construction of the building, the Civil War erupted and much of the
activity of its first two years centered around northem Virginia. in August, 1862, Saint
Mary's Church became the focal point for treatment of the wounded following the Second
Buttle of Bull Run. During the preceding spring, Clarisso Harlow Barton, o United States

Patent Office elerk and former school teacher from Oxford, Massachuseﬁs, had bagun
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buying food and medicines for wounded soldiers bivouacked at the Capitol Building in
V/ashingten. In addition, her pleas for supplies through Massachusetts newspapers
brought donations of medicines, bandages and food.

When reports came of steadily mounting casualties during the Second Battle of Bull
Run, Clara Borton responded, Recruiting three other women volunteers and colfecting

more donated supplies, Miss Barton cut across regulations and social conventions, obtaining

permission fo have supplies sent to the front by train, and enobling her and her team to
werk close to tha battie lines. As the Union Army withdrew before General Lea's
advancing froops, the federal field hospital was removed to Saint Mary's, Falirfax
Station. A train of 88 cars arrived there on Sunday, August 3!, carrying food and

amrrunitien for General Pepe's troops. When emptied, it would carry the wounded
back to Washington. In the meantime the men would have to be laid out on the hill
sirerching away from the church.

Clus Barton, too, arrived on that train, bringing food and first aid. She nursed the
wounded for three sleepless days and nights as violent rains fell and doctors operated
in the exly dry place available ~~- the church, Although Miss Barfoa and the doctors
tried, ond clthough trains moved 1,000 wounded men ot a time back o Washington,
many soldiers died and were buried in the churchyard. Two Union Generals died
der 5 *his conflict =~ Isaac Stephans and Philip Kearny, the latter once Lee's comrade
in the Mexican War. The deaths of both men were brought to the attention of General
Les, who ordered their bodies returned to their own lines under a flag of truce.

Clava Barron deseribad the scene

At six p.m. (Seprember 1), o thunderstorm and arfiliery could be heard.
We waited in a tent, the old Massachusetts 2]st between us und the Rebs
as poor Kearny and Stephens' bodies were brought through,

The pastor of Saint Mary's Church conducted a short service over the fallen men and then
work resumed. Undar the threat of the Confederate advance, Miss Barton and the doctor
remained until the last woundad man had embarked, then abandoned the place to the
soldiers who then burned everything they could not carry, When the Confederates
arrived, they found q few smoldering railroad cars, some unburned supplies, and Saint
Mary's.

The pews of Saint Mary's Church were . also dastroyad during this time, serving as firewood
for the federal troops. Local tradition holds that the present pews were installed at the

GPQ 892 455
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order of President Ulysses S. Grant who often travelled by train to a resoit in nearby

Cliffon. Hearing of the damage inflicted on the Church by federal troops, he is said
to have personally ordered restitution,

The tast decades of the nineteenth céntury were a time of anti-foreign and anti- {
Catholic sentiment in much of this country, Yet Saint Mary's Church activities were

always covered by the local nawspapers and its parishioners were known and respected. i
It was during these years that the first Saint Mary's picnic was held, Originally a
Fourth of July celebration, the affair became an annual event and was transferred to
Labor Day sometime after 1894. In September of 1975 parishioners and area residents

enjoyed the ninety-ninth annual picnic, an event which is considered fo be the cldast
outdoor social function in Fairfax County.

CPD 892 455
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